
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html

























 


405 – 234 Eglinton Avenue East ● Toronto, Ontario ● Canada M4P 1K5 
Tel/Tél: 416-487-4447 ● Toll-Free/Sans frais: 1-877-475-4353 ● Fax/Télécopieur: 416-487-4429 


admin@adrcanada.ca ● www.adrcanada.ca 
 


 
ADRIC National Gold Standard Dispute Resolution Training Program 


Administration Policy 


 


1. Definitions 


a. “ADRIC” means the ADR Institute of Canada Inc.; 


b. “Approved Trainers” and “Approved Coaches” mean the persons approved to 
deliver Program Courses in accordance with paragraph  3  of this Policy; 


c. “Course Fees” means the fees for Program Courses approved by ADRIC in 
accordance with paragraph 4 of this Policy;  


d. “Program” means the ADR Institute of Canada Inc. National Gold Standard 
Dispute Resolution Training Program established and administered in 
accordance with this Policy; 


e. “Policy” means this Administration Policy;  


f. “Program Course” means any Gold Standard training course delivered as part of 
the Program; 


g. “Region” means any regional affiliate of ADRIC; 


 


2. Program Principles  


a. Beginning with the introductory Mediation Course and the introductory 
Arbitration Course, ADRIC has decided to develop the Program for the use and 
benefit of its Regions. 


b. Persons successfully completing any Gold Standard Program Training Course will 
be permitted to use that training towards the requirements for relevant ADRIC 
designations and/or, in some Regions, training hours required for membership.  


c. Course content and requirements for all courses in the Program shall be created 
through and be maintained by ADRIC. 


d. Subject to the requirements of this Policy, the Course Program(s) may be 
delivered in each Region as the Region decides. 


e. In any event, applications to deliver Program Courses will be administered 
through the region in which the program is to be given, unless the region is 
unable to administer the application, which will then be administered by ADRIC. 


f. The Region shall provide ADRIC with its Regional Board Resolution(s) from time 
to time to reflect the Region’s decision(s) to deliver Program Courses







 


ADR Institute of Canada Inc. – Gold Standard Courses Administration Policy,  Page 2 of 2 


 


3. Approved Trainers and Coaches 


a. Only trainers and coaches approved in accordance with this Policy (the “Approved 
Trainers” and “Approved Coaches”) will be authorized to deliver Program Courses.   


b. ADRIC will develop a process for approval of the trainers and coaches for Program 
Courses. There will be an approval process for each individual Program Course. The 
approval process will include, at a minimum, the following elements: 


 Criteria for credentials required for a person to be considered as a 
trainer, and  


 A training course or evidence of equivalent training experience.   


c. Every Approved Trainer and Approved Coach shall be required to sign an agreement 
that they will not use the Program Course Content for any purpose other than to teach 
that Program Course approved by a Region or ADRIC.  


 


4. Course Fees 


a. Course Fees shall be set from time to time by ADRIC after consultation with the Regions. 


 


5. Responsibilities 


1) The Region shall be responsible for: 


a. Using the nationally branded standard advertising material in any marketing. Program 
Courses delivered in a Region are to be marketed as ADRIC National Gold Standard 
Dispute Resolution Training.  


2)  The Approved Trainer shall be responsible for: 


a. Giving notice of date and location for any Program Course delivered in the Region to 
the Regional Affiliate; 


b. Costs of and arranging for logistics for any Program Course, such as meeting rooms, 
refreshments, audio visual requirements etc;  


c. Requesting the region to circulate standard advertising material with sufficient notice.  


 


6. Revenues 


7. Upkeep and Development Fund 


There shall be an Upkeep,  Development  and Promotion Fund to ensure the upkeep and 
maintenance of existing courses in the Program and to fund national promotion of the Program 
Courses and when possible the development of new courses in the Program. ADRIC will also 
pursue other options for funding for Program development.  


 


8. Taxes 


All amounts are subject to applicable taxes (GST or HST). 








Report of the Governance Committee 
September 30, 2013 


1 | P a g e  


To the ADRIA Board of Directors 


At the June, 2013 Board meeting, the Governance Committee was tasked with identifying and 


recommending required bylaw changes to enable ADRIA to comply with ADRIC’s bylaws in 2014.  


Specifically, our bylaws must include a process to enable the ADRIA full members to elect a 


National Director.  Secondly, the ADRIA board wishes the National Director to be a member of the 


ADRIA board also. 


 


Bylaw Amendment Process  


Legal Requirements - Bylaws 


8.2  Bylaw Amendments  


The Bylaws may be rescinded, altered or added to only by Special Resolution passed or consented to and 


registered in accordance with the Act.  


1.1. Definitions  


In the Bylaws:  


Special Resolution means a special resolution as defined in the Act.  


Legal Requirements - Societies Act 


Rescission, etc. of bylaws 


15(1)  The bylaws of a society shall not be rescinded, altered or added to except by special resolution of the society. 


(2)  No rescission or alteration of or addition to a bylaw has effect until it has been registered by the Registrar. 


(3)  If the Registrar is of the opinion that a bylaw is not in accordance with the application for incorporation or that 
it contains anything contrary to law, the Registrar shall refuse to register it. 


Definitions  


1   In this Act, 


 (d)“special resolution” means 


 (i)a resolution passed 


 (A)at a general meeting of which not less than 21 days’ notice specifying the intention to 
propose the resolution has been duly given, and 


 (B)by the vote of not less than 75% of those members who, if entitled to do so, vote in person 
or by proxy, 







Report of the Governance Committee 
September 30, 2013 


2 | P a g e  


 (ii)a resolution proposed and passed as a special resolution at a general meeting of which less than 
21 days’ notice has been given, if all the members entitled to attend and vote at the general 
meeting so agree, or 


 (iii)a resolution consented to in writing by all the members who would have been entitled at a 
general meeting to vote on the resolution in person or, where proxies are permitted, by proxy. 


 


Advice of the Governance Committee 


The bylaws and Act require a vote by the full members, not the Board to amend the bylaws.  In 


order to comply with the ADRIC bylaws in 2014, ADRIA will either have to: 


1. Amend its bylaws before the nomination period opens so that the 2014 elections include 


the National Director position, or  


2. Amend its bylaws at the 2014 ADRIA AGM (May 23, 2014) and then conduct the election 


for National Director after that date. 


The Governance Committee recommend that ADRIA amend its bylaws before the 2014 AGM by 


circulating a written resolution under 1(d)(iii) of the Act.   


 The form of the written resolution would be as outlined in Appendix A.  


 The resolution would have to be returned well in advance of the nomination date, keeping 


in mind that the bylaw amendment must be filed with the Registrar and is not effective 


until the Registrar approves it.   


 Under the ADRIA bylaws the nomination process must officially commence (Nominating 


Committee sending out names) 45 days before the AGM – which in 2014 is Friday, April 4, 


2014.  


 A suggested timeline is: 


o Early January, 2014 – send out the written resolution to the full members 


o Set a return date of February 15, 2014 (the return date has to be longer than 21 


days from the date of mailing) 


o February 16, 2014 count the ballots.  If 75% of those voting agree, the resolution 


passes. 


o If passed, February 17, 2014 prepare the Certificate of Special Resolution to send to 


the Registrar. (see Appendix B for a sample) 


o If the Registrar approves the changes, a letter will be sent to ADRIA within 


approximately 30 days (approximately mid-March 2014).  


o By March 20th, ADRIA should be able to proceed with the election of a National 


Director. 







Appendix A 
SPECIAL RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE ADRIA BYLAWS 


 


1 | P a g e  


 (Conducted Under Bylaw 8.2 and Section 15 of the Societies Act) 
 


Whereas the ADRIC Bylaws have changed, to comply with the new 2014 national non-profit 
legislation, to read: 
 


ix (b) i  The Board shall be comprised of 
 
(i) seven (7) Directors comprised of one (1) Member in Good Standing from 
each Regional Affiliate and(as elected by the Members in Good Standing who 
are members of each such Regional Affiliate); 


 
Whereas the ADRIA board has until now appointed the National Director from ADRIA; 
 
Whereas the ADRIA bylaws do not provide a method to elect a National Director from ADRIA; 
 
Whereas the ADRIA board believes a better relationship and better communication will result 
between ADRIC and ADRIA if the National Director from ADRIA is also a member of the ADRIA 
board;  
 
Therefore,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED  that the ADRIA bylaws be amended by the provisions shown in italics, (with all 
other bylaws remaining as previously written): 
 


4.2 COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 


 
The Board consists of:  


 


a. A minimum of 5 and a maximum of 9 Directors, as determined by the Board from time to time; 
 


b. Directors who are elected by the Full Members of the Society; and  
 


c. the Society's immediate past president. However, if the past president is unable or unwilling to serve, the 
Board may, but is not required to, appoint another past president of the Society, and .  
 


d. the National Director elected by the Full Members of the Society. 


 


4.4  Nominating Committee  


1. The Nominating Committee is established as a standing committee of the Society and consists of at least 1 


Director and at least 2 other Full Members appointed by the Board. 


 







Appendix A 
SPECIAL RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE ADRIA BYLAWS 


 


2 | P a g e  


2. The Nominating Committee will prepare annually for the Secretary a list of qualified nominees for election 


as Elected Directors and National Director, equal in number to the number of Board vacancies to filled, and 


they will be deemed validly nominated for election to the Board.  


4.6  Election  


1. If, on the date nominations close, there are the same number of candidates nominated as there are 


vacancies to be filled, those candidates will be acclaimed and no election vote will be required. 


 


2. If a vote is required, then at least 20 business days before the AGM, the Executive Director will send to each 


member a ballot. 


 


3. Each ballot will contain: 
 


a. the name of each nominated candidate for Director with the names arranged alphabetically; 


and 


b. the name of each nominated candidate for National Director with the names arranged 


alphabetically; and 


c. a brief explanatory note stating the maximum number candidates for which a vote may be 


cast. 


 


6.1  Officers  


1. The offices of President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer are offices of the Society.  


 


2. The Board may create other offices of the Society, specify the authorities, powers and duties of such offices and 


elect Directors to hold such offices.  


 


3. One person may hold more than one Office.  


 


4. Appointed Directors are not eligible to serve as President or Vice-President. 


 


5. The National Director is not eligible to hold Office while serving as National Director..  


 


6.8  National Director  


The National Director will:  
 


a. carry out the role of National Director as outlined in the ADRIC bylaws; 
 


b. attend the ADRIA board meetings; 


c. communicate information and issues between ADRIC and ADRIA; 


d. represent ADRIA interests and views to the ADRIC National Board; and 







Appendix A 
SPECIAL RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE ADRIA BYLAWS 


 


3 | P a g e  


e. facilitate and enhance the national-affiliate relationship.  


 


6.8  6.9  Delegation  


1. The authorities, powers and duties of Officers specified in Article 6 are in addition to the authorities, powers 


and duties:  
 


a. specified in the Act or elsewhere in the Bylaws; or  
 


b. customarily associated with such offices in similar organizations. 


 


2. The Board may prescribe and delegate accordingly, vary and revoke: 
  


a. additional authorities, powers and duties for any Office; and 
  


b. authorities, powers and duties for the Executive Director(s) of the Society.  


________________________________________ 


 


I ________________________________________, full member of ADRIA, cast my ballot as  


follows on this Special Resolution to Amend the ADRIA Bylaws:  (MARK ONLY ONE) 


   IN FAVOR       OPPOSED 


 


Vote cast and signed on this _______   day of  ______________, 201___.   


 


_______________________________ 


Signature of Full Member  







Appendix B 
 


1 | P a g e  


Certificate of 


SPECIAL RESOLUTION 


TO AMEND THE SOCIETY BYLAWS 


Under the Societies Act of Alberta 


I hereby certify that the following special resolution was passed by the members of the ADRI of 


Alberta (Corporate Access Number ______________) on _________________. 


  


BE IT RESOLVED  that the ADRIA bylaws be amended by the provisions shown in italics, (with all 
other bylaws remaining as previously written): 
 


4.2 COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 


 
The Board consists of:  


 


a. a minimum of 5 and a maximum of 9 Directors, as determined by the Board from time to time; 
b. Directors who are elected by the Full Members of the Society; and  
c. the Society's immediate past president. However, if the past president is unable or unwilling to serve, the 


Board may, but is not required to, appoint another past president of the Society, and .  
d. the National Director elected by the Full Members of the Society. 


 


4.4  Nominating Committee  


3. The Nominating Committee is established as a standing committee of the Society and consists of at least 


1 Director and at least 2 other Full Members appointed by the Board. 


4. The Nominating Committee will prepare annually for the Secretary a list of qualified nominees for 


election as Elected Directors and National Director, equal in number to the number of Board vacancies 


to filled, and they will be deemed validly nominated for election to the Board.  


4.6  Election  


1. If, on the date nominations close, there are the same number of candidates nominated as there are 


vacancies to be filled, those candidates will be acclaimed and no election vote will be required. 


2. If a vote is required, then at least 20 business days before the AGM, the Executive Director will send to 


each member a ballot. 


3. Each ballot will contain: 
 


a. the name of each nominated candidate for Director with the names arranged alphabetically; 
and 


b. the name of each nominated candidate for National Director with the names arranged 
alphabetically; and 







Appendix B 
 


2 | P a g e  


c. a brief explanatory note stating the maximum number candidates for which a vote may be 
cast. 


6.1  Officers  


1. The offices of President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer are offices of the Society.  


2. The Board may create other offices of the Society, specify the authorities, powers and duties of such offices 


and elect Directors to hold such offices.  


3. One person may hold more than one Office.  


4. Appointed Directors are not eligible to serve as President or Vice-President. 


5. The National Director is not eligible to hold Office while serving as National Director..  


6.8  National Director  


The National Director will:  
 


a. carry out the role of National Director as outlined in the ADRIC bylaws; 


b. attend the ADRIA board meetings; 


c. communicate information and issues between ADRIC and ADRIA; 


d. represent ADRIA interests and views to the ADRIC National Board; and 


e. facilitate and enhance the national-affiliate relationship.  


6.9  Delegation  


3. The authorities, powers and duties of Officers specified in Article 6 are in addition to the authorities, 


powers and duties:  


a. specified in the Act or elsewhere in the Bylaws; or  


b. customarily associated with such offices in similar organizations. 


4. The Board may prescribe and delegate accordingly, vary and revoke: 


a. additional authorities, powers and duties for any Office; and 


b. authorities, powers and duties for the Executive Director(s) of the Society.  


We enclose an amended copy of the ADRIA bylaws for your records. 


__________(date)       __________________________ 


Erika Deines 


Executive Director  


  








Education & Professional Development 
 
Enrollment 
We had a grand total of 163 students: 
 87 students in our classes 
 76 students as part of private contracts 
 
Edmonton: 
September – total 27 
 14 - MED 350 (ADRIA) 


5 - ADR 110 (ELA – AAMS) 
8 – ADR BUS (ELA – Specialty) 
24 - Private Contract (AHS)  


October – total 56 
 14- COM 150 (ADRIA) 


12 - ADR 110 (ELA- - AAMS) 
 2 - Mediation assessments 


28 - Private Contract (PTI) 
 
Calgary: 
September – total 16 
 11 - MED 350 (ADRIA) *half of these students were making up classes from the Calgary flood   


5 - ADR 110 (ELA – AAMS) 
24 - Private Contract (AHS) 


October – total 16 
 10- COM 150 (ADRIA) 


6 - ADR 110 (ELA- - AAMS) 
 
Courses cancelled 
We had three specialty classes that were cancelled due to insufficient enrollment 
 ADR BUS – Calgary September 
 Court & Community – Calgary September 
 Oil & gas – Calgary September 
 
Red Deer College: 
Due to insufficient enrollment, all classes scheduled for Red Deer this fall were cancelled (ADR110, 
COM150 & HRCM). We are rescheduling for the winter term beginning in February 2014. 
 
Student cancellations 
We had 5 students cancel their enrollment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 
Notes 


 Tasha Innes joined ADRIA mid-October to assist with Education & administration 


 A draft of Coach & Instructor protocols has been developed based on the discussion groups at 
the Sylvan Lake event in September. 


 A new protocol for first-time coaches has been developed and implemented. This protocol 
includes evaluation procedures to determine if the coach is a good fit with our programs.  


 Upcoming private contact in December with the University of Lethbridge for Manager as 
Mediator training for 24 students. 


 Developed protocols for the mediation practicum program.  


 Updated all core course materials to reflect ADRIA instead of AAMS. 


 Updated all brochures. 


 Launched two new courses that will be delivered for the first time in Spring 2014 – Non-violent 
communication and Conflict coaching.  


 Re-started the practice group sessions in Edmonton. 


 Launched SharePoint system for instructors and coaches. Coaches can post their availability by 
course and date making it easier to select coaches for the various courses. Information such as 
instructor selected, coaches selected, contact information for coaches & instructors, location & 
time of courses, as well as all course documents are now available through SharePoint. 


 New processes for managing coaching assignments has been implemented.  


 New processes for managing enrollment, material orders and assessment bookings has been 
implemented  


 Re-designed the course evaluations for COM150 and MED 350. 


 Initiated discussions with Bow Valley College to run core programs at the college Spring 2014. 


 The new Conflict Management Certificate for HR Professionals is nearly complete and will be 
offered in February 2014. 


 All education policies, protocols and materials are being gathered to create a “Master Education 
Guide”. 


 We have created distribution lists for various topics to make it easier to email only select 
members with relevant information. (E.g. Distribution list of members interested in attending 
mediation practice sessions, distribution list of members interested in a specific specialty 
course.) 


 Attended the fall Mediation Interagency Network (MIAN) meeting. ADRIA will be hosting the 
next meeting on December 10th in our classroom at Concordia college. 


 Sent brochures to Alisdair McKinnon for distribution at the HR Association in Red Deer. 


 Had a booth at the employment conference in Edmonton. 
 
 








Membership report – November 2013 


 


 
 Substantial progress has been made in establishing new office and website protocols for membership administration 


and course enrollment.  Significant website and relocation problems were resolved, and new staff have become 
comfortable with the existing IT applications (both its strengths and weaknesses).   


 Ian Tuckey has joined the ADRIA staff on retainer, supporting many needed upgrades and offering ready expertise.   


 No significant IT changes are envisioned for early 2014, noting that all barriers and wait-times for membership and 
course enrollments have been removed.  That said, website improvements for 2014, including “look & feel” are 
being developed.   


 Membership targets for 2013 will NOT be met.  Membership remains relatively constant at 454 Full & Associate 
members as of Nov 22nd, and both ADRIA & ADRIC are working to reduce the rate of Full member non-renewals, 
notably those with national designations.  The 2014 Budget projections call for 500+ members.   


 The Board may wish to review membership pricing for 2014, and specific proposals regarding Corporate and Affiliate 
memberships have been prepared for Board consideration. 


 ADRIC and ADRIA membership policies remain at odds with respect to renewal terms (annual vs anniversary), and 
efforts to reconcile with ADRIC continue.  The Board might want to consider moving to a annual/calendar renewal 
period for 2015.  


 Approximately 30 designation applications were processed this Fall.  The Board may wish to review the application 
fee structure for 2014 and beyond. 


 The Job Board has been reactivated, recent postings have been circulated, and Board recommendations have been 
forwarded to begin developing this revenue stream in 2014. 


 Member communications have been purposefully constrained to ensure that mail-outs are viewed as high-quality, 
professional, and meaningful with a predictable frequency.   


 A communications strategy will be more fully articulated in early 2014, but a proposed schedule of ADRIA & AAMS 
newsletters will be presented for Board approval.   


 Member and student complaints have been dealt with informally as they arise.  The current Board review of a 
comprehensive complaint resolution process is welcomed, and every effort will be made by staff to ensure that ADR 
principles are applied at all times when responding to member concerns. 


 There are no current metrics for member satisfaction, and a new survey might be worth considering for late 2014. 


 Staff capacity to administer the National Arbitration Rules has been regained, with a recent file earning $4000 (to be 
shared with ADRIC).  ADRIC is in the process of updating the National Arbitration Rules, and it is recommended that 
ADRIA actively promote this business line in 2014. 


 The BBB Edmonton contract for roster arbitrators and mediators has been well utilized, with three mediations and 
three arbitrations thus far.  A training session for the BBB Marketplace Coordinators and our roster mediators is 
planned for December, in order to enhance the mediation referral opportunities. 


 Calgary networking/professional development luncheons have continued on a monthly basis, organized by Jim 
Willson and supported by Truus.  Networking sessions are envisioned for Edmonton, initially on a quarterly basis. 


 Progress continues on the 5-day Conflict Management for HR Professionals course for delivery in 2014.  AHS has 
been engaged into the HR design process, in the hopes that our previous AHS training delivery can be extended. 


 Building on the HR program, a generic Conflict Management for XYZ Professionals is envisioned for marketing in 
2014, where 2-3 days of the program will be tailored to meet the professional needs of any specific group.  ADRIA 
was represented at the Alberta Congress Board (ACB) Annual Conference in Jasper, where ADRIA had a booth set up 
and hosted the breakfast speaking forum. 


 AAMS and ADRIA met to discuss common grounds for collaboration, including a collaborative communication 
strategy of alternating newsletters – 4 each per year.  The ADRIA newsletters would continue to have a member 
focus, while the new AAMS newsletters would have a public focus, with a page devoted to ADRIA messages.  
Common promotional materials are also being developed, to replace some existing ADRIA brochures. 


 The next ADRIA newsletter will be released on or before December 15th, 2013.   


 The 2014 Directory remains a work in progress.  A web-based format is envisioned, with opportunities for 
advertising, added content, bios and web-links. 


 AGM Planning for May 2014 has commenced, with Maureen Nowicki engaged as the Event Planner. 
 
 


Prepared by Paul Conway, Director Member Services, 780-433-4881 ext 111, paul@adralberta.com  



mailto:paul@adralberta.com






Galbraith Law  


ADRIA Board Policy Review 


November 2013 


 


The purpose of this review is to identify language in the board policies that may not 


be appropriate. For example, in our June board meetings we determined that there 


is mandatory language compelling the Executive Director to do things for which 


ultimately she has no control. Rather than stating these items as mandatory they 


will be stated as goals and objectives or other similar language. Also, where it is 


appropriate to use mandatory language then the action to be taken or consequences 


in the event of a breach must be spelled out.  


This review will start with those three items that were identified in our June 


meetings as requiring review. I will then move on to review the remainder of the 


board policies. 


1. Policy II 5. Financial Planning 


1.1. This section uses compulsory language in the preamble by stating that 


financial planning “shall not …”. I recommend replacing the preamble with 


the following: 


All financial planning during any fiscal period or part of a fiscal period 


must be done with a primary objective of not risking financial jeopardy 


or compromising the ADRIA Ends policies. 


1.2. Change the second sentence of the preamble to:  


Accordingly, the executive director will not, without the approval of the 


Board, cause or allow financial planning which: 


1.3. Add a new item 7 which reads:  


Deviate by more than 10% of Board’s mission outcomes. 


2. Policy II 6. Financial Condition 


2.1. Replace the first sentence of the preamble with the following: 


 If the financial condition is in jeopardy, the executive director must 


immediately notify the Board. 


2.2. Replace the second sentence of the preamble with the following:  


The Executive Director must not do any of the following without 


permission of the Board. 


3. Policy II 7 Security/Operating Reserve 


3.1. Replace the second sentence of the preamble with the following:  







Galbraith Law  


Any decision of a financial nature must be done with reference to the 


budgeted allocation for reserve funds. The Executive Director must not 


knowingly deviate from the budget allocations and should  


circumstances occur that may result in a deviation, the Executive 


Director will immediately notify the Board. To achieve this objective, 


the Executive Director will: 


3.2. Change the first word of point 2 from “Either” to “Neither”. 


4. Remainder of Board Policies 


4.1. In reviewing the entire Board Policies, I did not find any other instances 


where the policy creates an impossible situation by mandating compliance 


by the Executive Director, the Board, the executive or any individual 


Board member for something over which they do not have control. 


5. General Comment 


5.1. Throughout the policies I found certain recurring issues. Addressing these 


issues, in my view, will improve the policies. 


5.2. Use of negative language. This is especially apparent in Policy II – 


Executive Director Limitations.  By contrast, Policy  IV Board Work is 


consistently written in positive language. My preference, for many reasons, 


is to use positive language. Some of these reasons include the following: 


5.2.1. Positive language encourages action by letting people know what they 


can do rather than what they cannot do. 


5.2.2. Positive language is easier to understand. 


5.2.3. The human brain has difficulty processing the negative. Rather, the 


brain simply processes information without regard to the negative or 


positive. For example, if I tell you that you must not under any 


circumstances think of a pink elephant, you will immediately think of 


a pink elephant. 


5.3. Here are two examples of policies that can be reframed. 


5.3.1. Policy Type II 1. The Executive Director will only engage in and will 


consistently encourage practices which are prudent and ethical. 


5.3.2. Policy Type II 2. (starting with the second sentence) The Executive 


Director will:  


5.3.2.1. Ensure the board is aware of relevant trends, anticipated adverse 


media coverage … 


5.3.2.2. Submit the required monitoring in a timely, accurate way and 


with clear language. 


5.3.2.3. Include as many staff and stakeholder points of view … 


5.3.2.4. Present information succinctly and with clarity. 







Galbraith Law  


5.3.2.5. Etc.  


5.4. In many places, and once again especially in Policy II, some of the three or 


four letter words are used ineffectively.  


5.4.1. For example, there are several places where it states “the Executive 


Director may not”. The word may is an optional word suggesting that 


the Executive Director has a choice and they may not do this or maybe 


they will. The word “must” is far more effective.  


5.4.2. The use of the word “shall” is also problematic. It has a double 


meaning. It can mean something is mandatory or it can mean 


something will be happening in the future (I shall be going shopping on 


Tuesday). For that reason, I avoid using “shall” in any writing and 


especially when writing policies or agreements. If the intention is to 


write about something that will occur in the future use the word “will”. 


If the intention is to write about something that is mandatory then use 


the word “must”. 


6. Conclusion 


6.1. Thank you for the opportunity of reviewing the Board Policies. It has 


helped in learning more about the organization. The issues I was asked to 


review are addressed in the first four points of this document. The 


remainder of the document is done on my own initiative. Since I am the 


person raising the remaining issues I also quite prepared to undertake the 


task of revising the Board Policies to address the issues I have raised in 


Section 5. 


6.2. I wish you all the best with your meetings of November 22 and 23  and 


look forward to joining you at the next meetings. 


 


Respectfully submitted,  


Stan Galbraith 








 
Dr Elias Opongo SJ <director.hipsir@hekima.ac.ke> 
 


Nov 15 (3 days ago) 
 


 
 


 to me 


 
 


Dear Erika, 
  Once again I am very grateful for this opportunity and for our conversation. I am so happy to have met you in this program and 
hope that something positive will develop out of this. I have just shared the following message with the Principle as a way of 
following up on our conversation. It summarizes our discussions, many thanks again and we'll keep in touch, Elias: 
 
a) The idea is that we would partner with the Canadian Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) centre in developing a mediation 
program that would train professionals that can mediate between the oil, gas and mining companies, and the affected communities.  
b) Develop a partnership that would run for three years during which the ADR centre would train staff and individuals at HIPSIR to 
conduct specialized mediation training to different organizations and companies. 
c) At the end of the three years HIPSIR would be expected to be independent but the relationship with the ADR centre could 
continue in a different form  
 
Process of implementation 
1. Consultation period: in the coming weeks the two institutes to do an internal consultations with their colleagues in order to sell the 
idea and build an interest. Erika will present the idea to the Board of the ADR centre which is meeting in a week's time. She is 
positive that the Board could approve it.  Elias mentioned that he had already briefed the Principal and the Assistant Director of 
HIPSIR 
2. MOU: The next step would be to develop an MOU between the two institutions 
3. Fundraising: The two institutions would jointly put together a proposal for fundraising. It would be a good strategy to approach the 
oil and mining companies based in Canada but with interests in Africa like Talisman, Tullow, Shell, etc. We would begin by 
contacting the local/regional offices in Nairobi so that they may contact their head quarters in Canada and elsewhere. 
 
We are excited that if this succeeds it would be a great opportunity. 


 


Dr. Elias Opongo, Director 


HEKIMA COLLEGE 


Peace Studies and International Relations 


P.O.Box 21215-00505 


Nairobi, Kenya 


Telephone 020 3860102 & 020 3860109 








 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 1 of 8 
 


ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) 
Complaints and Dispute Resolution Policy and Processes  


DRAFT JUNE 17, 2013  
 


Purpose: 
 
The purpose of this policy is to address disputes and complaints that may arise, and 
to address complaints received by ADRIA openly, honestly, thoroughly and 
transparently concerning: 
 Operational activities:  programs, policies, services, ADRIA staff, contractors or 


volunteers; and  
 Board policies and governance of the Society.  
 


Guiding Principles 
  
 Collaboration:  The skills and resources of ADRIA will be used to address 


complaints and resolve disputes in a manner that is consistent with an interest-
based, collaborative approach.  


 Timeliness:  Complaints will be dealt with promptly and resolved as quickly as 
possible.  


 Fairness: Review of complaints will be fair, impartial and respectful to all parties 
and allowing all parties to have their perspectives heard.  


 Thoroughness:  Review of complaints will be thorough and as detailed as 
possible, based upon the information provided by the complainant and 
respondent. 


 Accessible and User Friendly:  The process will be easily accessible and 
communicated to members.  It is designed to be clear and as simple to follow as 
possible. 


 Transparency: Complainants will be provided clear and understandable reasons 
for decisions relating to complaints. Complainants will be provided with updates 
during review processes.   


 Confidentiality:  Information about a complaint will only be given to people 
directly involved and to others on a need to know basis. All involved will be 
advised of the need for confidentiality.  


 


Types of Complaints Covered in this Policy 
 
Definitions:  
 
A complainant is the individual or entity lodging a complaint against another 
individual or entity within ADRIA’s jurisdiction. 
A complaint is an expression of dissatisfaction about the service, actions, or lack of 
action by ADRIA as an organization or about a staff member, Institute member, 
contractor or volunteer acting on behalf of ADRIA.  
 







 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 2 of 8 
 


A dispute is a disagreement between parties about the occurrence of events, the 
correctness of facts, the quality of products or services delivered, recompense for 
products or services delivered, and personal or professional conduct of one or more 
parties.   
 
An Ombudsperson is an individual who has been appointed by the Board to act as an 
intermediary in complaint processes and to work with disputing parties and the 
Board of Directors to resolve complaints. The Board may appoint a roster of 
Ombudspersons, the appointments of which may be from the Board, the staff, or the 
general membership based on experience, personal reputation and neutrality.  
 
A policy is any policy that has been approved by the ADRIA Board of Directors. 
 
A respondent is the individual or entity against whom a complaint has been made.  
 
 
This policy deals with complaints by: 


 ADRIA members 
  partners, affiliates or clients 
 ADRIA staff, instructors, coaches or students 
  the general public. 


 
This policy deals with: 


 Complaints between ADRIA members 
 Complaints about ADRIA members 
 Complaints about ADRIA Board members 
 Complaints about ADRIA staff members or the Executive Director 
 ADRIA member competency or ethical breaches 
 Complaints about ADRIA instructors or coaches 
 Complaints about the ADRIA Educational or Professional Development 


programs 
 Disputes relating to contracts with private service providers 
 Internal ADRIA human resources matters that are addressed under Bylaw 


8.4 (see attachment 1) 
 
 
Responsibility for Implementation 
 
This policy respects the accountability framework of ADRIA which provides that: 


 operational matters are the  responsibility of the Executive Director and 
 matters relating to Board policy, Board activities\decisions and ADRIA  


governance are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. 
 
 


Complaints Procedures 
 







 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 3 of 8 
 


 
Preliminary Procedure 
The first person a complainant should talk to is the person with whom he or she has 
the conflict. The complainant should also contact any person who is most familiar 
with the matter of concern.  
 
If the claimant is unable to resolve the matter with the respondent and is unsure 
about who to talk to, he or she is  encouraged to consult with the ADRIA Executive 
Director.  If the Executive Director is not the right person, he or she will support the 
complainant in redirecting the concern to the appropriate person. 
 
 
Subject\Type of Dispute/ Complaint First Contact  
Complaints regarding ADRIA services, programs, 
activities, operations, contractors or volunteers 


ADRIA Staff – a person who is involved in the 
service area relating to the complaint and, if 
necessary, the Executive Director  


Complaints regarding ADRIA staff members Executive Director 
Disputes between staff members Executive Director 
Complaints regarding ethics, conduct or 
professionalism of an ADRIA member 


Executive Director 


Complaints concerning the Executive Director Board Officers – Vice-President 
Complaints regarding Board Policies, Board 
actions/decisions and governance of the Society 
 


Board Officers –President, Vice-President, 
Treasurer or Secretary  


Matters related to Board/staff relations Board Officers - Vice-President  
Complaints concerning a Board Member Board Officers – Vice-President or President  
 


 
Complaints about operational practices pertaining to Education, such as course 
materials, teaching schedules, class quality, certificate requirements, concerns with 
instructors or coaches, fees, etc. will be initially dealt with by the Manager, 
Professional Development. 
 
Complaints about operational practices pertaining to Membership, such as 
designations, membership fees, processing issues, refunds, the Directory, website 
problems, etc. will initially be dealt with by the Director, Member Services. 
 
Day to day operational matters may be escalated to the Executive Director, who will 
meet with all parties, including the Manager, Professional Development and/or the 
Director, Member Services.  The complaints procedures will still be followed; but the 
decision of the Executive Director in these matters is final.  
 
 
Step 1: Informal Discussion  
 
A complainant will first contact the appropriate ADRIA representative to discuss the 
concern.  At this step facilitated dialogue and negotiation between the disputing 







 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 4 of 8 
 


parties is encouraged. An Ombudsperson will be appointed at the early stages of a 
complaint to assist the complainant in clarifying the concern and seeking possible 
remedies. The Ombudsperson may request some details from both parties in 
writing; however this does not constitute a written complaint at this point. 
 
 
Every attempt will be made to resolve the matter in less than two (2) weeks from 
the date the concern was raised with the ADRIA representative. 
 
 
Step 2:  Written Complaint  
 
If the informal discussion does not resolve the matter to the satisfaction of the 
complainant, the complainant will be asked to present the complaint in writing to: 


 the ADRIA Executive Director for all operational matters, or  
 the Vice President  for Board policy /governance matters or  matters 


involving board/staff relations and performance/actions of the Executive 
Director or complaints against a Board member 


 
Complaints received in writing will be acknowledged within two-three (2-3) 
business days.  While further discussion to resolve the complaint may still occur in 
an attempt to find a mutually agreeable solution, the following will apply: 
 


 Where the complaint is filed with ADRIA staff or the Executive Director, a 
written response from the Executive Director(s) will normally be received by 
the complainant, with a copy to the respondent, within two (2) weeks.  
 
If, within two (2) weeks of receiving the response, the complainant advises 
the Executive Director in writing that the response does not resolve the 
matter, it shall be referred by the Executive Director in writing,to an ADRIA 
appointed Ombudsperson. (Step 3) 
 
Where the complaint is filed with the Board, a written response from the 
Vice-President will normally be received by the complainant, with a copy to 
the respondent, within two (2) weeks.  
 
If, within two (2) weeks of receiving the response, the complainant advises 
the Board through the Vice-President in writing that the response does not 
resolve the matter, it shall be referred by the Vice-President in writing, to an 
ADRIA appointed Ombudsperson. (Step 3) 
 
Depending upon the nature of the complaint, the Ombudsperson appointed 
by the Executive Director or the Board may or may not be the same 
individual originally assigned to help the complainant during the initial 
stages. 
 
 







 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 5 of 8 
 


Resolution Procedure 
 
The Ombudsperson shall attempt to resolve all issues using various tools at 
his or her disposal and in a manner deemed most appropriate by the 
Ombudsperson in consultation with the parties.  
 
Any dispute that is not resolved through an ADRIA Ombudsperson may be 
appealed to the Board of Directors. The Board may wish to determine the 
matter at the next full meeting of the Board or refer the issue to the Board 
Review Panel. (Step 4) 
 


If a matter falls under the dispute resolution provisions of the ADRIA bylaws (see 
attachment 1) the matter may be referred to Mediation and\or Arbitration.   
 
 
Step 3: Ombudsperson 


 
Upon receipt of a referral or a written complaint from either the Executive Director 
or the Board, the Ombudsperson will contact the parties to commence an attempt to 
resolve the issue(s).  The Ombudsperson will determine if the matter is appropriate 
for mediation and will use a non-evaluative mediation approach. All parties are 
encouraged to work with the Ombudsperson.    


 
a. If the complaint is not resolved by efforts of the Ombudsperson, the 


Ombudsperson may refer the matter to the ADRIA Board for review and 
determination.  


b. If the complaint is resolved by the efforts of the Ombudsperson, the 
Ombudsperson will send a confirmation letter to the parties and write a report 
of the complaint, documenting the parties, the issue, steps taken and the 
resolution. What actually happened or what was discussed during this process 
will be confidential and not part of the report. The report will be submitted to 
the ADRIA Board and/or the Executive Director, as appropriate.  


 
If the complaint is resolved, the Ombudsperson will send a confirmation letter to the 
parties and notify the Executive Director or Board of Directors (depending on the 
source of the referral) of the matter’s conclusion. 


 
The Ombudsperson will make every effort to complete this work within sixty (60) 
days from the date of receipt of the written complaint. 
 
 
Step 4: Board Review Panel 
 
Where a matter need be referred to a Board Review Panel, a three-member panel 
shall be appointed by the ADRIA Board of Directors. The panel shall consist of at 
least two members of the Board, with the third panel member being the Executive 
Director, an ADRIA staff person or an ADRIA member at large.  







 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 6 of 8 
 


 
Upon occasion, and depending upon the severity of the complaint, the Board may 
appoint a subject matter expert or professional from outside ADRIA as the third 
panel member.  
 
 The Review Panel will contact the complainant and the respondent within five (5) 
working days of being struck and will hold a meeting to be attended by the parties 
within thirty (30) days.   
 
During this meeting the parties will have an opportunity to provide their views on 
the matter.   A written decision of the panel shall be provided to the parties within 
two (2) weeks of the meeting date. There is no appeal. 
 
 
Step 5: Board Determination 
 
Where a matter is referred by the Ombudsperson to the ADRIA Board of Directors, 
the Board may choose to determine the matter at a whole Board meeting or refer it 
to an ADRIA Board Review Panel (Step 4). If the Board determines it will deal with 
the matter, a written acknowledgement will normally be received by the 
complainant and respondent one (1) week after the next scheduled ADRIA Board 
meeting.  
 
The Board acknowledgement will inform the parties of the process the Board 
chooses to use in resolving the matter, what additional information the Board 
requires, and whether the Board wishes the parties to appear at a Board or Review 
Panel meeting.  
 
Whether the Board determines the matter as a whole, or whether it accepts the 
recommendation of the Review Panel, the written response of the Board will 
provide a final, non-appealable decision on the matter within a week it its 
determination. 
 
 
Documenting Complaints 
  
A record will be kept of any written complaint under this process. Information about 
such complaints will include the parties involved, a description of the complaint, 
who handled it, what was done to resolve the complaint, the timeframe, and a 
description of the resolution or an explanation for non-resolution. These records 
will be kept in a confidential file. 
 
A summary of complaints, including total number of complaints and the type of 
complaints received, will be prepared by the Executive Director and reported to the 
Board of Directors annually. 
 







 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 7 of 8 
 


Day to day operational matters may be escalated to the Executive Director, who will 
meet with all parties, including the Manager, Professional Development and/or the 
Director, Member Services.  The complaints procedures will still be followed; but the 
decision of the Executive Director in these matters is final.  
 
Matters Not Appealable 
 


- ADRIA Bylaws 
- 1Previously Reviewed Complaints 
- Operational Matters (after due process & determination by the Executive 


Director) 
- Issues within the jurisdiction of the ADR Institute of Canada (ADRIC) 
- Matters of law.  


 
 


                                                        
1  







 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 8 of 8 
 


 
 
Attachment 1: Bylaw Provisions 


8.4  DISPUTE RESOLUTION 


1.   This Section applies to any dispute arising out of the Society's affairs and 
between members, or between the Society or its Director or its Officer and 
either,  


 


a. a member or a person who is aggrieved and who has for not more than 6 
months ceased to be a member; or  
 


b.  a person claiming through the member or aggrieved person or claiming 
under the Bylaws,  


 
2.   Any dispute subject to Subsection 1 will be resolved by:  
 


a.  Direct negotiation between the affected parties. If resolution is not achieved, 
then by the provisions of the Complaints and Dispute Resolution and Process 
Policy by  
 


b.  Mediation pursuant to the National Mediation Rules of ADRIC. The place of 
mediation will be in Alberta. The language of the mediation will be English. If 
resolution is not achieved, then by  
 


c.  Arbitration pursuant to the Simplified Arbitration Rules of ADRIC. The place of 
arbitration will be in Alberta. The language of the arbitration will be English, 
and the decision will bind all parties.   


 
 

























Meeting Notes - ADRIA BOARD Strategic Planning Workshop Sept 28, 2013  Page 1 of 2 


 


ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) 
Planning Session 


September 28, 2013  
 


MEETING NOTES  
 


1. Discussion about ADRIA Membership  
 


ADRIA should be in inclusive professional membership organization where there is a 
place for all those who work in the field can belong – this includes: 


o   People who are ADR Professionals  


o   People who work in other professions who practice ADR in their work 


o   People who want to be either one of these  


  


·         How do we encourage people to be part of this organization? 


o   Many Prominent practitioners in the field of ADR do not belong to ADRIA.  We 
need them more than they need us.  We need to find ways to reach out to them 
to be part of our organization – does the approach to Designations have a part 
in this – not recognizing their experience with formal training requirements of no 
value to them creating a barrier.  


o   People must be a member to take our courses – this relates to legal advice 
provided to us during the transition – As a result we have been creative in 
incorporating membership into course fees – this may be something to revisit 
(Note: We are delivering ADR 110 as part of an arrangement with AAMS who 
owns the course and anyone (non-members) can attend) 


o   Belonging to ADRIA means someone having their name\professional reputation 
associated with our organization.  Some people do not want to be associated 
with ADRIA – they don’t see ADRIA as a credible organization to belong to 


o   Although we are not a regulated profession, some organizations (e.g.: Federal 
Government) are now looking for providers with designations - it is starting to 
have weight 


o   People need to belong to attain and maintain a designation – but the value of a 
designation varies depending upon your career path – many practitioners simply 
don’t need a designation.  


  
2. Revising the Vision and Mission 


 
- The following is the Draft Vision and Mission of ADRIA based on the group discussion 


– changes made including changing the  reference the ADR Profession to  align with 
the Membership discussion above, re-ordering the bullets to reflect priority and adding 
a bullet relating to encouraging membership 


 


  







Meeting Notes - ADRIA BOARD Strategic Planning Workshop Sept 28, 2013  Page 2 of 2 


 


Vision  


ADRIA is the strongest, most vibrant Appropriate Dispute Resolution 
membership organization in Canada - recognized for advancing excellence 
in the field of ADR, its practice, and its professionals 
 
Mission:  
To provide leadership and services in appropriate dispute resolution (ADR) 
to our members by:  
• Fostering excellence in negotiation, mediation, arbitration, and 


restorative practices  
• Supporting the  viable practice of ADR in Alberta  
• Providing excellence in (high quality?)  ADR  professional development  
• Promoting the ethical use of ADR processes  
• Maintaining accreditation standards, accountability  and designations 


for the ADR profession 
• Encouraging those practicing in ADR to join our organization 
  


 
3. Next Steps:  


o Rick will return in November to support Board discussion about the other 
Strategic plan elements 


 Staff and Board  to review the Strategic Plan and come prepared to 
suggest changes  


o Staff will produce a draft of items to be dash boarded (and what they might look 
like) to be provided before the November 2013 board meeting. ( Examples of 
dashboards were shared)  


o Board members to send thoughts and names of present and potential partners 
and stakeholders to Paul and Erika prior to the November 2013 meeting ( A list 
of possible stakeholder “ groupings” was shared)  


o We don’t need to produce an ON Board at this time. (Not enough to report)  


o With the newsletter profiling ADRIA members, it was suggested that 
consideration be given to profiling the President. 


 













Meeting Notes - ADRIA BOARD Strategic Planning Workshop Sept 28, 2013  Page 1 of 2 


 


ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) 
Planning Session 


September 28, 2013  
 


MEETING NOTES  
 


1. Discussion about ADRIA Membership  
 


ADRIA should be in inclusive professional membership organization where there is a 
place for all those who work in the field can belong – this includes: 


o   People who are ADR Professionals  


o   People who work in other professions who practice ADR in their work 


o   People who want to be either one of these  


  


·         How do we encourage people to be part of this organization? 


o   Many Prominent practitioners in the field of ADR do not belong to ADRIA.  We 
need them more than they need us.  We need to find ways to reach out to them 
to be part of our organization – does the approach to Designations have a part 
in this – not recognizing their experience with formal training requirements of no 
value to them creating a barrier.  


o   People must be a member to take our courses – this relates to legal advice 
provided to us during the transition – As a result we have been creative in 
incorporating membership into course fees – this may be something to revisit 
(Note: We are delivering ADR 110 as part of an arrangement with AAMS who 
owns the course and anyone (non-members) can attend) 


o   Belonging to ADRIA means someone having their name\professional reputation 
associated with our organization.  Some people do not want to be associated 
with ADRIA – they don’t see ADRIA as a credible organization to belong to 


o   Although we are not a regulated profession, some organizations (e.g.: Federal 
Government) are now looking for providers with designations - it is starting to 
have weight 


o   People need to belong to attain and maintain a designation – but the value of a 
designation varies depending upon your career path – many practitioners simply 
don’t need a designation.  


  
2. Revising the Vision and Mission 


 
- The following is the Draft Vision and Mission of ADRIA based on the group discussion 


– changes made including changing the  reference the ADR Profession to  align with 
the Membership discussion above, re-ordering the bullets to reflect priority and adding 
a bullet relating to encouraging membership 


 


  







Meeting Notes - ADRIA BOARD Strategic Planning Workshop Sept 28, 2013  Page 2 of 2 


 


Vision  


ADRIA is the strongest, most vibrant Appropriate Dispute Resolution 
membership organization in Canada - recognized for advancing excellence 
in the field of ADR, its practice, and its professionals 
 
Mission:  
To provide leadership and services in appropriate dispute resolution (ADR) 
to our members by:  
• Fostering excellence in negotiation, mediation, arbitration, and 


restorative practices  
• Supporting the  viable practice of ADR in Alberta  
• Providing excellence in (high quality?)  ADR  professional development  
• Promoting the ethical use of ADR processes  
• Maintaining accreditation standards, accountability  and designations 


for the ADR profession 
• Encouraging those practicing in ADR to join our organization 
  


 
3. Next Steps:  


o Rick will return in November to support Board discussion about the other 
Strategic plan elements 


 Staff and Board  to review the Strategic Plan and come prepared to 
suggest changes  


o Staff will produce a draft of items to be dash boarded (and what they might look 
like) to be provided before the November 2013 board meeting. ( Examples of 
dashboards were shared)  


o Board members to send thoughts and names of present and potential partners 
and stakeholders to Paul and Erika prior to the November 2013 meeting ( A list 
of possible stakeholder “ groupings” was shared)  


o We don’t need to produce an ON Board at this time. (Not enough to report)  


o With the newsletter profiling ADRIA members, it was suggested that 
consideration be given to profiling the President. 


 





















DRAFT January 13, 2013    Page 1 of 3 


 


ADRIA STRATEGIC PLAN 2015 –2016? 
With Vision and Mission changes Sept 28, 2013 


 


VISION  


ADRIA is the strongest, most vibrant Appropriate Dispute Resolution membership organization in Canada - 
recognized for advancing excellence in the field of ADR, its practice, and its professionals 
 


MISSION:  To provide leadership and services in appropriate dispute resolution (ADR) to our members by:  


• Fostering excellence in negotiation, mediation, arbitration, and restorative practices  
• Supporting the viable practice of ADR in Alberta  
• Providing excellence in (high quality?)  ADR  professional development  
• Promoting the ethical use of ADR processes  
• Maintaining accreditation standards, accountability  and designations for the ADR profession 
• Encouraging those practicing in ADR to join our organization 
 
OUR VALUES: The guiding principles of ADRIA are based on innovation, creativity, change, and added value in conflict 
resolution:  


Excellence: We challenge ourselves to deliver the highest quality programs and services. We stay abreast of new ideas and 


developments and seek out changes and innovations that help us continuously raise the bar in everything we do. 


Uncompromising Ethics We treat others with honesty, openness, fairness and respect in every situation. 


Collaboration:   We value different views and ideas and believe that by working effectively together and with others we can reach 


our goals. We embrace the opportunity to explore mutual interests and new relationships. We welcome opportunities to leverage our 


resources through partnering.   


Accountability: We steward our resources with diligence and care. We honour the commitments we make to others. 


Leadership: We will promote new and important directions and opportunities for our profession and our organization, even though 


the path may be difficult. We recognize it is only through trying new ideas and learning from our failures that we can grow and move 
forward.  







DRAFT January 13, 2013    Page 2 of 3 


 


To be discussed at the Sept 28, 2014 Planning session 
STRATEGIC 
DIRECTION  


STRATEGIES 
 


Success Indicators  
(Targets) 


1. Enhance the 
Awareness, 
reputation of 
and access to 
ADR  services  


 


a. Forge strategic 1partnerships with government, courts, schools, 
businesses and other associations to support ADRIA members in 
working, teaching and coaching in the ADR field 


2 new partnerships (Example 
Municiplities)  in each of 2013, 
2014 and 2015 


b. Increase the value of ADRIA membership to ADR professionals 
and industry leaders 


Increase the number of ADRIA 
members by 17% in 2013. 


c. Develop and implement a roster development plan with defined 
deliverables 


ADRIA administers 4 rosters 
by end of 2013   


d. Strengthen our partnerships with ADRIC and other ADR 
organizations to promote the practice of ADR  


2013 – at least 1 initiative with 
ADRIC, and 1 with AAMS plus 
2 others 


1. Strengthen 
our 
Profession  


a. Continue to work with ADRIC to support development & delivery 
of National Mediation and Arbitration education Programs for 
entry into the profession.  


Complete current 
initiatives\contracts  with 
ADRIC in 2013. At least 1  new 
initiative completed in 2014 


b.  Develop Partnerships with universities and colleges to integrate 
ADRIA accredited Appropriate Dispute Resolution courses into 
their Certificate and Degree programs.  


 


1 Partnership in place in 2013 
and 1  in 2014  


c.  Increase partnerships with professional and industry 
associations to create and accredit ADR courses for their  
Certification programs that will  lead to Q.Med designations 


2 courses accredited in 2013 
( homebuilders and HRIA) and 
at least 1 more  partnership in 
2014 


d. Promote the value of ADRIC designations with organizations and 
the public who access Appropriate Dispute Resolution services 


Increase the # of coaches and 
instructors with designations in 
2013 ( amount?) 


                                                           
1 A partnership is an arrangement where parties agree to cooperate to advance their mutual interests 







DRAFT January 13, 2013    Page 3 of 3 


 


STRATEGIC 
DIRECTION  


STRATEGIES 
 


Success Indicators  
(Targets) 


2. Increase the 
number of 
ADRIA 
MEMBERS 
across Alberta  


a. Increase access and value of designations to targeted groups to 
build membership (See # 1a - 2a & c) 


Increase ADRIA membership 
by 17% 


At least 1 group targeted and a 
strateegy implemented for  Q-
Med in 2013 and Q-Arb in 
2014  


b. Develop and implement a plan for increasing ADRIA profile and 
service delivery in centers with a high percentage of ADR 
professionals who are not members of ADRIA  


Plan developed in 2013 and 
increase Calgary\Southern 
Alberta members by at least 
40  


Increase in number of students 
attending courses in Southern 
Alberta in 2013 


 


3. Strengthen 
the long term 
sustainability 
of ADRIA as 
an 
organization 


a.  Develop and  implement a mid- to long-term  revenue stream 
strategy and targets for ADRIA founded upon 1-3 above 


Line of credit paid off on 
schedule- 2013 


A reserve is created in 2014 to 
cover hard costs 


Membership revenues (non- 
Education) cover hard costs  
2015? 


b.  Develop and implement an effective mid-term organizational 
structure and human resources plan that aligns with 1-3 above  


 A structure for operational 
leadership is implemented in 
2013 


 








From: Erika Deines 
Sent: Wednesday, October 02, 2013 9:14 PM 
To: 'W. Donald Goodfellow'; 'daherman@shaw.ca'; 'Deborah Howes'; 'Smith, 


Chuck'; 'Bancroft, James'; 'barrie.marshall@gowlings.com'; 'Stan 
Galbraith'; 'Michael Hokanson'; 'Joanne Munro'; 'Wendy Hassen' 


Subject: AON Insurance September 2013-2014 
 
To follow up on items arising from the Minutes, Action Item following 6.1, in the matter of renewal of 
our Insurance: 
 
I called our representative at AON again and was reassured that the document I completed was 
completed correctly. I called AON originally when I completed the document and was advised then (and 
again today) to list part-time employees, employees and contractors under the heading ‘employees’; I 
listed 6 (Karen, Brenda, Truus, Paul, Tammy, Erika). The category ‘Independent Contractor’ on the 
renewal form refers to any contractor we hire to perform services such as painting, flooring, etc. and 
who we would expect to provide their own insurance.  
 
We are insured as follows: 
 
Commercial Business Insurance 
               $67,614 limit – Contents 
               $10,000 limit – Loss inside/outside the Premises 
               $2,000,000 limit – Commercial General Liability                                  $ 1,232 
Errors & Omissions Liability: 
               $1,000,000 limit – per Occurrence 
               $1,000,000 limit – Aggregate                                                                   $ 2,186 
Directors & Officers Liability: 
               $1,000,000 limit – Directors & Officers Liability Insurance                $ 3,675                 Total  7,093 
 
 
Erika Deines/ Executive Director 
 
We have moved!  
You can find us at: 
 


ADR Institute of Alberta 


Room CE223A 
7128 Ada Boulevard 
Ralph King Athletic Centre - Concordia University College 
Edmonton AB T5B 4E4 
ph. (780) 433-4881 ext 110 or 1-800-232-7214 ext 116 
fax. (780) 433-9024 
www.adralberta.com 


 


An entrepreneur once asked a wealthy and established businessman, “How did you do it? How do you continue to increase your 


profits year after year? I spend hours each day wracking my brain, trying to figure out how to make (get) money – and I can’t 


seem to do it.” 



http://www.adralberta.com/





The wise businessman gave the young man a very sage piece of advice. “It has never been and never will it be, my intention to  


make money,” he told him. “My intention has always been to provide better service.”  


When we shift the focus from how we can “get” to how we can "give," success becomes inevitable. 


 








Draft Terms of Reference  Q-MED Designation Review Committee               Page 1 of 2 
 


Terms of Reference - Draft November 22, 2013  
Q-MED Designation Review Committee  


 


Mandate:   


The National Q –Med  Designation has been in place for approximately 5 years.  The ADRIA 
Designations Committee has raised a number of questions with the ADRIA Board regarding 
appropriate application of National Standards, including education requirements and 
assessment of competence.  It is time for a review  to ensure the Q-Med designation is being 
implemented as intended, the integrity of the designation is maintained, and there is ongoing 
value to designation holders and those they serve.   The Q–MED designations committee will 
gather and analyse information; examine present standards and practices, identify areas that 
may need to be improved and options to address them both in regard to ADRIA practices and 
areas to raise and dialogue with ADRIC and other regional partners. 


 Key principles guiding this process are:   


 Consistency: Cconsistent application of designation standards Nationally wherever possible 


 Accessibility:  Encouraging  professionals who use ADR in their practice to pursue Q-Med 
designation to enhance their ADR skills and provide a quality product to their employers 
and clients 


 Quality Assurance:  Q –Med and C-Med designations are different designations both having 
integrity and value to the profession and those they serve 


 Clarity:  Clear guidelines to support consistent, fair and transparent application of Q-med 
standards by ADRIA 


 Collaboration:  Respect that ADRIC is the owner of the Q-med designation and it is  in the 
best interest of ADRIA to work collaboratively with ADRIC and their affiliates to strengthen 
our profession. 


Responsibilities\Tasks:  


1. Consulting with  other regional affiliates and preparing a document comparing  present 
practices in implementation of Q-Med designation across Canada  


2. Consulting with ADRIC and reporting on relevant areas of interpretation of National 
standards 


3. Identifying those areas the committee believes need to be addressed regarding any  
inconsistent application of standards; unclear policies or practices and making appropriate 
distinctions between Q-Med and C-Med designation ( education, assessement, ethics and 
practice expectations) 


4. Identifying options for solutions to address any issues identified  
5. Providing a report and recommended strategy to the ADRIA Board by ????? date  


 


Duration of Committee:  From date of appointment to the delivery of a report and 


recommendations to the ADRIA Board  


Chair of Committee:  ADRIA Board member as appointed by the Board  







Draft Terms of Reference  Q-MED Designation Review Committee               Page 2 of 2 
 


Committee Membership:  At least 2 members appointed by the Board (including the Chair)  


    At least 1 member of the Designations committee  


    11-3 additional members who can bring added perspectives 


    ADRIA staff member overseeing the designations function 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Requirements for Staff Time:   Assist committee in finding meeting space, supporting research 


and report development 


Budget Requirements: Committee costs associated with conference calls ??? 


Reporting of Committee: Interim reports and\or final recommendations   


 


                                                           


 1 This could include Professionals who are currently pursuing Q-Med, and or  have 


achieved their Q-med; ADR Instructors\Assessors;  ADR Policy makers; Q-med 


clients\employers to include all stakeholder perspectives 


 








C0180363.v1 


TREASURER’S REPORT 


 Effective as of the end of October 2013 (November financial statements not yet available) 


 Attachments 


o Balance Sheet October 31, 2013 


o Income Statement Summary October 31, 2013 


o Budget v. Actual Profit and Loss Summary October 31, 2013 


o Pie Chart October 31, 2013 


 All financial documents are available to board members who want copies of them. 


GENERAL COMMENTS  


 No changes have been made to the current methodologies to make payments and do cheque 


runs etc. as per the reasons outlined in the last meeting. 


 Efforts to come up with a “dashboard” style financial picture to get distributed with reference to 


our strategic plan will continue after the strategic plan 


 The request to AAMS to extend the loan period was granted.  Repayment was extended from 12 


months to 18 months and details are included in the package that was available online for board 


members prior to the meeting 


FINANCIAL COMMENTS 


 My preference is not to go through all of the financial statements in any great detail as I suspect 


that it will bog down the process. 


 The Profit and Loss Budget v. Actual is probably the best indicator of where we are at. 


 On the whole the education side of the equation is very close to budgeted allotments in terms 


of both revenues and expenses..  The biggest financial shortcoming thus far appears to be on 


the membership side.  As you can see by the third attachment the budgeted fees expected for 


membership numbers for YTD (as of October) is over $23,000.00 less than anticipated 


 The previous general comment that our budget is fairly “thin” remains  valid.  We are able to get 


by but we need to be mindful of expenses with a view to keeping the overall budget intact. 


 The following comments from the last meeting bear repeating as we didn’t fully make it through 


the strategic planning session.   


o Associated with the strategic planning will be some decisions with respect to where we 


focus our efforts. 


o eg.  If the programs we currently offer are changed such that they are administered 


through other post-secondary education institutions the revenues will dip considerably 


as we will no longer be receiving payment for the courses to the same extent as before.  


On the flip side, the expenses will also drop drastically is the instructors and materials 


are provided through the post-secondary institution as opposed to through AAMS. 


 








ADR Institute of Alberta


Ten Months


 Ended October 31, 2013


Member 
Services


21%


Professional 
Development


74%


Designations
2%


Accreditation
0%


Other Income
0%


REVENUES


Member 
Services


3%


Professional 
Development


41%


Designations
0%


Operations
54%


Board of 
Directors


2%


EXPENSES


Report 3








ADR Institute of Alberta


INCOME STATEMENT - SUMMARY
Ten Months Ended October 31, 2013


November 13, 2013 5:43PM Page 1 Report 3


2013 10 Months Ended Actual %
Budget Oct. 31, 2013 of Budget


Revenue


Membership Fees Net of ADRI 109,690 $ 74,790 $ 68% 
Other Membership Services 91,175 63,021 69% 
Professional Development 591,410 507,131 86% 
Designation 5,200 13,400 258% 
Accreditation 7,350 395 5% 
Other Income 1,720 1,827 106% 


Total Revenue 806,545 $ 660,564 $ 82% 


Expense


Member Services 17,830 $ 17,175 $ 96% 
Professional Development 328,590 243,814 74% 
Designation 2,000 3,253 163% 
Operations 409,658 318,488 78% 
Board of Directors 15,675 9,253 59% 


Total Expenses 773,753 $ 591,983 $ 77% 


Net Income (Loss) 32,792 $ 68,581 $ 209% 








ADR Institute of Alberta
BALANCE SHEET


October 31, 2013


November 13, 2013 5:42PM 1 Report 1


ASSETS


CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 6,258 $
Reserve Funds 6,007 
Accounts Receivable 67,396 
Prepaid Expenses 12,663 


Total Current Assets 92,324 $


PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Office Furniture & Fixtures 5,221 $
Computer Equipment 18,090 
Telephone Equipment 4,671 
Classroom Furniture & Equipment 2,914 


Total Property and Equipment 30,896 $


OTHER ASSETS


Total Other Assets 0 $


TOTAL ASSETS 123,220 $


LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY


CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 16,592 $
Accrued Liabilities 3,775 
Deferred Revenue 44,375 
GST/HST Payable 1,905 
Loan from AAMS 11,740 
Due to ADRI 1,445 


Total Current Liabilities 79,832 $


LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Lease Payable - Telephone 4,214 $


Total Long Term Liabilities 4,214 $


TOTAL LIABILITIES 84,046 $


MEMBERS' EQUITY
General Surplus (29,408)$
Net Income (Loss) 68,582 


Total Members' Equity 39,174 


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY 123,220 $








 5:59 PM


 11/13/13


 Accrual Basis


 ADR Institute of Alberta


 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 January through October 2013


Jan - Oct 13 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget


Income


Membership Fees Net of ADRIC 74,790.00 98,015.00 -23,225.00 76.31%


Other Membership Services 63,021.43 68,445.00 -5,423.57 92.08%


Professional Development 507,131.02 511,590.00 -4,458.98 99.13%


Designation 13,400.00 4,600.00 8,800.00 291.3%


Accreditation 395.25 3,850.00 -3,454.75 10.27%


Other Income 1,826.85 1,700.00 126.85 107.46%


Total Income 660,564.55 688,200.00 -27,635.45 95.98%


Expense


Member Services 17,173.88 15,530.00 1,643.88 110.59%


Professional Development 243,814.30 283,245.00 -39,430.70 86.08%


Designation 3,252.50 1,600.00 1,652.50 203.28%


Operations 318,489.98 332,689.77 -14,199.79 95.73%


Board of Directors 9,252.19 13,062.50 -3,810.31 70.83%


Total Income 591,982.85 646,127.27 -54,144.42 91.62%


Net Income 68,581.70 42,072.73 26,508.97 163.01%


 Page 1 of 1








EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 


Report November 2013 


Activities for October and November 2013 


PARTNERSHIP OPPORTUNITIES 


Meeting with Shauna Feth, FEA 


Executive Director 


Alberta Business Family Institute 


University of Alberta School of Business 


Edmonton Office:780-492-5401 


feth@ualberta.ca 


www.abfi.ca 


Excerpt from the website:  


Rural Development Initiative: Creating Pathways for Entrepreneurial Families 


Almost every road in Alberta leads to a family-owned business, whether it is a family farm or downtown 


corporate headquarters. While the structure and function of organizations along this spectrum vary 


immensely, they typically share ongoing or periodic challenges related to communication, management, 


conflict resolution, succession planning—issues that are unique to family enterprise. 


Purpose: Partnership opportunities in cross-training, designations for  Family Enterprise Advisors (FEA). 


 


Meeting with RATKA JANJIC, BA,CHRP, CertHRM, CACE, CCT 


Senior Manager,  


Corporate Learning &  


Continuing Education 


Email: janjicr@macewan.ca 


Phone: 780-497-5718 


Fax: 780-497-4728 


www.macewan.ca 


Following up on a lead from the HR Conference, ADRIA met with three representatives from the 


Corporate Learning faculty at Grant MacEwan.  There was genuine interest in future partnership for our 


courses, particularly with the view to offering education leading towards designations.  Purpose: ADRIA 


is particularly interested in offering the new Gold Standard Arbitration course through Grant MacEwan.   


 


OPEN HOUSE 


Approximately 50 people attended the Open House on October 18. Chancellor Allan Wakowich, former 


Chief Justice of the Court of Queen’s Bench, addressed those present, as did President Gerald Krispin, 


both representing Concordia University.  Joanne Munro brought greetings on behalf of the ADRIA Board. 


 


CALGARY OFFICE 


Negotiations with the North Calgary Business Centre were entered into and are nearing completion in 


an effort to come to a creative agreement that involves the sale of one electronic classroom set-up 



mailto:feth@ualberta.ca

http://www.abfi.ca/

mailto:janjicr@macewan.ca

http://www.macewan.ca/





(ceiling mounted LCD projector, pull-down screen, lectern and computer equipment) in exchange for 


reduced monthly facility rental. 


 


This arrangement would be cost effective for Specialty Courses which currently may not get off the 


ground due to enrolment below the minimum threshold. It would guarantee the use of the classroom 


for 60 days per year as well as the full-time availability of a 2-room office/mediation room.  


 


ADR Institute of Canada National Conference and 


ICC Canada International Arbitration Conference 


October 24-25, 2013 


InterContinental Toronto Centre, 225 Front Street West, Toronto 
 


Chuck Smith, Tammy Borowiecki and Erika Deines (one day) attended the Conference. The Gold 


Standard Mediation and Arbitration courses were delivered in hard-copy as well as electronically to the 


Training Task Force’s co-chairs, Mary Satterfield and Anne Wallace. Mary Anne Harnick, ED for ADRIC, 


presented the Gold Standard programs to the Directors of ADRIC at the Board meeting on Saturday, 


October 26.   


 


The Trainer Orientation online program is currently being designed for Adobe Connect webinar format. 


ADRIC is in the process of developing a Protocol for the Gold Standard courses’ delivery across Canada, 


including cost/revenue sharing policy, trainer qualifications, document and reporting requirements, etc. 


Regional Boards will be able to vote on adopting the new programs into their scope of services or opt 


out if they so desire.  


 


Municipal Dispute Resolution Services Advisory Committee  


Michael Scheidl, Manager, Dispute Resolution Services 


Intermunicipal Mediation Advisor 


Municipal Collaboration Unit 


Government of Alberta 


 


Paul Conway and Erika Deines attended the Municipal Dispute Resolution Services Advisory Committee 


Meeting on November 1st at Providence Centre.  


Excerpt from the Minutes: “Mike gave an overview of the Collaborative Governance Initiative (CGI).The 


concept behind CGI is to help municipalities put protocols and processes in place to support capacity 


building and deal with conflict proactively.  Currently there are 4 CGIs’ that are conflict related and 3 


internal CGIs working with the public.  There are 4 intermunicipal cooperation protocols currently. Mike 


gave an overview of how facilitators are selected to lead a CGI and stressed they are designed for 


municipalities to access.   Other organizations deal with neighbourhood disputes.  Erika reported 


currently there is an initiative to set up community mediation in rural areas.  Lisa said sometimes in rural 


communities there is no mediator nearby and referring parties to a private mediator is difficult.  It would 


be great to know where to refer people to for assistance.” Purpose: Tapping into expertise in working 







with municipal governments, resource allocation, collaboration for service delivery (complementary yet 


distinct areas of service provision). 


 


ADRIA Bridging the Distance Committee – Tele-Conference 


Chair, Monica Kreiner 


 


Several stakeholders participated in an exploratory discussion concerning the establishment of a 


provincial neighborhood mediation program which includes rural and urban districts and municipalities. 


A follow up meeting will be held between ADRIA and Municipal Dispute Resolution Services to establish 


a course of action and resource allocation. 


 


Joint Action Forum 


A Citizen-Centered Lens for Civil and Family Justice 


November 20, 2013 


Fairmont Hotel Macdonald, Edmonton 


 


There is a wealth of research about the access to justice challenge. This research makes it clear that for 


significant and lasting access to justice improvements to be realized, systemic changes are required. The 


Joint Action Forum is intended to be the catalyst that sparks a coordinated transition to action in our 


province. The initiative involves participants in its formative stages, inviting us to share in an opportunity 


to shape what is to come. It provides an opportunity to use the work of the National Action Committee 


on Access to Justice in Civil and Family Matters (NAC) whose reports supply recommendations that may 


assist us in Alberta. (www.cfcj-fcjc.org/collaborations#NAC)  


Table discussions produced the following summary of action items: 


 Availability of affordable and essential legal services 


 Education, marketing our message, providing accessible information 


 Simplification of processes – court & otherwise 


 Early resolution of problems (non-court vs. court, and within the court) and courts as last resort 


(triage) ** 


 Recognizing diversity of communities; citizen-centered, and one size will not fit all 


 Multidisciplinary approach, service delivery leaders working together (legal/social/health) 
** this item was tagged as “need improvement implemented within 6 months” 


 


A final item on the agenda was the adoption of a “Collaborative Action Charter” to ensure a shared 


understanding of the goals of the Citizen Centered Justice Alliance (CCJA) and to clarify the collaborative 


arrangements agreed to by the members.  Deputy Minister of Justice and Solicitor General, Tim Grant, 


assured participants that the momentum gained at the November 20 gathering will be carried forward 


into timely action.  



http://www.cfcj-fcjc.org/collaborations#NAC






ADRIA Membership Categories 


RECOMMENDED 2014 CHANGES (Nov 2013): 
  


It is recommended that ADRIA retain our existing 4 categories of membership: 1) Full, 2) Associate, 3) Corporate, and 4) 


Affiliate.  Memberships currently expire one year from the date of renewal or payment date, although there are reasons 


we may wish to change this for 2015.  It is recommended that the Category definitions be amended as outlined below.  


It is further recommended that Membership prices be reviewed by the BoD for 2014. 


  
  


FULL MEMBERSHIP – The current 2013 price is $270 + GST / year.  The BoD might want to consider 


moving to $285 [ie $85 for ADRIC and $200 for ADRIA].  This would be consistent with BC ($285), but 


higher than Ontario (remaining at $270), Sask ($195, but under review) and Manitoba (TBC).  It is 


recommended that the BoD and/or staff pursue consistent pricing across Western Canada. 


  


RECOMMENDED NEW DEFINITION: An individual whose professional practice or aspirations embrace, 


support, and/or benefit from the provision of ADR services in Alberta. A full membership includes membership 


with the ADR Institute of Canada (ADRIC) and full voting rights, and is required for those holding professional 


ADR designations and/or participating on ADRIA rosters. 


  


   


  ASSOCIATE MEMBERSHIP – The current 2013 price is $125 + GST / year.  No increase is recommended, as 


this is currently the highest Associate/Student membership fee in Canada ($0-$110 elsewhere).  Future 


increases should be considered in lockstep with ADRIO and/or the Western Provinces. 


  


RECOMMENDED NEW DEFINITION: An individual who supports ADRIA objectives and/or is pursuing 


qualifications as an ADR practitioner through ADRIA; and/or is enrolled at any post-secondary institution in 


Alberta and is pursuing a course of study that encompasses or complements the aims and objectives of 


ADRIA, and/or has an ADRIC membership through another province but wishes to be involved in the Alberta 


ADR community.  


  


 


CORPORATE MEMBERSHIP  - Currently priced at $1545 + GST / year*.  Significant changes to the 


definition and pricing strategy are recommended to enhance and promote this important “product” as 


an employee/company benefit, increase ADRIA revenues, and increase the potential for attracting 


individual ADRIA memberships in the future.  Note the employee access to ADRIA training in bold below. 


  


RECOMMENDED NEW DEFINITION: A corporation, firm, company, organization or government body that 


supports, encourages and/or accesses the services of ADRIA to support workplace performance, and/or 


utilizes the services of ADRIA to undertake ADR initiatives, and/or embraces ADR resolution mechanisms to 


resolve contract and workplace disputes, and/or has a commitment to demonstrate leadership in the field of 


ADR and wishes to support the aims and objectives of ADRIA.  Employee access to ADRIA training as an 


employee/employer benefit is included without any requirement for the purchase of individual 


memberships.  Corporate members are recognized on the ADRIA website, in member communications, and at 


professional events, including preferred pricing and access to sponsorship and advertising opportunities. 


 


RECOMMENDED PRICING:  $1000 - $5000 / year* depending on the number of employees (details TBC) 


  


 


AFFILIATE MEMBERSHIP – Currently $300 + GST / year, with no immediate increase recommended, as it is 


recommended that one-year Affiliate memberships provide strategic access to current partners and 


organizations of interest.  It would thus be recommended that Affiliate memberships be distributed (or 


sold) liberally by the BoD and staff (in the form of printed invitation cards, etc), and be included free-of-


charge in any ADRIA training proposal made to potential corporate clients.  Note that an Affiliate 


membership satisfies ADRIA’s membership requirements for the delivery of corporate training, but does 


NOT allow employee access to other ADRIA courses without first purchasing an individual membership.   


  


RECOMMENDED NEW DEFINITION: An organization that engages, supports or partners with ADRIA in the 


advancement of specific educational or conflict resolution program in ADR; and/or is engaged in the 


professional advocacy of ADR.  Affiliate members are recognized publically in ADRIA communications.  


 
 * It is further recommended that the $50 administrative new membership charge currently applicable to 


Corporate and Affiliate memberships be discontinued. 


 


 


 


Note- there are no ADRIC or ADRIO price increases envisioned for 2014, but 


that some other Provincial affiliates are currently reviewing their prices. 


 


If approved, follow-on action would include amendments to the ADRIA 


website, notification to members (notably early notice if there are any 


membership price increases for 2014), the printing of high-quality promotional 


materials, a marketing campaign to attract Corporate members, and a 


strategy/policy for the distribution of Affiliate memberships by BoD and staff.  


 


Page 2 references: 


Current Membership Brochure (amended by staff Sept 2013) 


Current Website Membership Details & Pricing (Jan 2013 or earlier) 


  


 


 


Prepared for the BoD by Paul Conway, Director Member Services, November 2013 







CURRENT ADRIA BROCHURE (Sept 2013)    Membership Categories (transition) 
  


There are 4 categories of membership: 1) Full, 2) Associate, 3) Corporate, and 4) Affiliate.  Memberships 


expire one year from the date of renewal or payment date. 


  


FULL MEMBERSHIP - $270 + GST / year  


  


DEFINITION: An individual whose professional practice or aspirations embrace, support, and/or benefit from 


the provision of ADR services. A full membership includes membership with the ADR Institute of Canada, and 


is required for those holding professional ADR designations. 


  


ASSOCIATE MEMBERSHIP - $125 + GST / year  


  


DEFINITION: An individual who supports ADRIA objectives and/or is pursuing qualifications as an ADR 


practitioner through ADRIA; and/or is enrolled at any post-secondary institution in Alberta and is pursuing a 


course of study that encompasses the aims and objectives of ADRIA.  


  


CORPORATE MEMBERSHIP  - $1545 + GST / year  


  


DEFINITION: A corporation, company, organization or government body that encourages and/or accesses the 


educational services of ADRIA to support workplace performance, and/or utilizes the services of ADRIA to 


undertake ADR initiatives, and/or has a commitment to demonstrate leadership in the field of ADR and wishes 


to support the aims and objectives of ADRIA. 


  


AFFILIATE MEMBERSHIP - $300 + GST / year  


  


DEFINITION: An organization that partners with ADRIA in the advancement of specific educational programs in 


ADR; and/or is engaged in professional advocacy of ADR. 


  


  


CURRENT WEBSITE    
What are the Membership Categories? 
There are 4 categories of membership: 1) Full, 2) Associate, 3) Corporate and 4) Affiliate. 


CATEGORY DEFINITION COST ²  


Full 
Click here to register.  


An individual who carries on a practice in Appropriate Dispute 


Resolution¹ (ADR); and/or performs ADR professionally or as a 


volunteer; and/or instructs or coaches in ADR. Includes a 
membership with the ADR Institute of Canada. 


$270 / year 


plus GST 


Associate 
Click here to register. 


An individual who supports ADRIA objectives and is pursuing 
qualifications as an ADR practitioner through ADRIA; and/or is 
enrolled at any post- secondary institution in Alberta and is 
pursuing a course of study that encompasses the aims and 
objectives of ADRIA. Continued membership as an Associate 
member is contingent upon the completion and proof of at least 8 
hours of ADR related course work during the year. Does NOT 
include a membership with the ADR Institute of Canada. 


$125 / year 


plus GST 


Corporate 
Click here to register. 


A corporation, company, organization, or government body that: 
utilizes the educational services of ADRIA to support ADR; and /or 
utilizes the services of ADRIA to undertake ADR initiatives, and/or 
has a commitment to demonstrate leadership in the field of ADR 
and wishes to support the aims and objectives of ADRIA. 
Corporate members will be entitled to sponsor no more than three 
(3) employees annually to receive discounts offered to ADRIA 
members. The names of the three employees must not change 
during the time of annual membership and the up to 3 names can 
only change at the time of renewal on the expiry date. Includes a 
membership with the ADR Institute of Canada for up to 3 
sponsored employees. 


$1545 / year 


plus GST 


Affiliate 
Click here to register. 


An organization that partners with ADRIA in the advancement of 
educational resources in ADR; and/or is engaged in professional 
advocacy of ADR. Affiliate members will be entitled to sponsor no 
more than two (2) employees annually to receive discounts offered 
to ADRIA members. The names of the 2 employees must not 
change during the time of annual membership and the up to 2 
names can only change at the time of renewal on the expiry date. 
Does NOT include a membership with the ADR Institute of 
Canada. 


$300 / year 


plus GST 


¹ Appropriate Dispute Resolution (ADR) is defined as a collection of processes and techniques for addressing 


conflicts between individuals and/or among groups, and that strive for collaborative outcomes. The processes range 
from coaching conversations to build capacity for disputants, to formal litigation. Common processes or practices in 
ADR include negotiation, mediation, arbitration and restorative justice. 


² ADRIA charges a new member administration one-time-only fee of $50 which is added to the cost of a new 


membership only. 



http://www.adralberta.com/mem-online-application-form-associate-full.asp

http://www.adralberta.com/mem-online-application-form-associate-full.asp?type=assoc

http://www.adralberta.com/mem-online-application-form-corporate-affiliate.asp?type=corp

http://www.adralberta.com/mem-online-application-form-corporate-affiliate.asp






ADRIA BOARD MEETING AGENDA TEMPLATE                            Page 1 of 2 
 


 


ADRIA BOARD MEETING AGENDA 


Friday November 22, 2013  6:30 PM 


followed by  


STRATEGIC PLANNING MEETING and BUDGET MEETING 


Saturday November 23, 2013  9:00 AM and 1:00 PM respectively 


Location: 


Boardroom HA206, Concordia University, Edmonton 


 


Time  # Topic\Title Action Role Ref  
Materials 


6:30 pm 1.0 CALL TO ORDER   Chair  


6:35 pm 1.1 Welcome guests – Designations Committee 


representative Sharon Wilson  


 Chair  


6.40 pm 2.0 APPROVAL OF AGENDA  Chair/ALL  


 2.1 Review of Agenda Items and addition of any 


items  


Review and 


Amend 


All 2.1 


6: 50 pm 3.0 ACCEPTANCE OF PREVIOUS MINUTES  Chair  


 3.1  Meeting Minutes: September 22, 2013 Motion to 


Amend/Adopt 


All 3.1 


6:55 pm 4.0  ACTIONS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS 


MEETINGS (Old Business)  


 All  


7:00 pm 4.1 Policy on QMed Requirements – Guest 


Designations Committee member 


Decision Chuck, Sharon 


Wilson, Guest 


4.1 


7:30 pm 4.2 Committee to review by-law regarding 


ADRIA representative on ADRIC Board 


Governance Committee Report 


Review of ADRIA Board Policy 


Decision Dolores 4.2 


4.2.1 


4.2.2 


7:40 pm 4.3 Complaints Policy Information Joanne 4.3 


7:45 pm 4.4 Relationship with AAMS (Progress with 


Agreement per Action Item Sept 22, 2013) 


Information Don 4.4 


7:50 pm 4.5 ED Succession Planning All Wendy  







ADRIA BOARD MEETING AGENDA TEMPLATE                            Page 2 of 2 
 


8:00 pm 4.6 Revised Schedule of loan payments to AAMS Written 


confirmation 


Don 4.6 


8:05 pm 4.7 Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance Information Erika 4.7 


8:10pm 4.8 Condominium Property Act Review Information Chuck  


8:20 pm 4.9 Joint Action Forum  Information Erika (see 5.2) 


8:25 pm 5.0 ACCEPTANCE OF REPORTS    


8:25 pm 5.1 Treasurer Report Michael 5.1, 


5.1.1 to 


5.1.4 


8:30 pm 5.2 ED Report Report Erika 5.2, 


5.2.1 to 


5.2.5 


8:40 pm 5.3 ADRIC Board Meeting Minutes – Oct 26 Report Chuck  


8: 50 pm 6.0  NEW BUSINESS  ALL   


 6.1 MoU - Hekima College/Peace Campus Decision Erika 6.1 


9:00 pm 7.0 OTHER ITEMS     


9:00 pm 7.1 Membership complaints & Ethical Issues Decision Erika/Paul 7.1 


9:05 pm 7.2 Job Board Decision Erika/Paul 7.2 


9:10 pm 8.0  NEXT MEETING     


  Date: 
Time:  
Location:  


   


9:15 pm 8.1 Meeting Notes – Strategic Planning Sept. 28 
Strategic Plan revised (Mission & Vision) 


  8.1 


8.1.1 


9:20 pm 9.0 IN CAMERA MEETING (DIRECTORS ONLY)    


9:30 pm 10.0 ADJOURN    


 








ADRIA Communications – Newsletters and e-mail 
 
In consultation with AAMS, it is recommended that both organizations adopt a 
staggered schedule of producing 4 newletters each, such that ADRIA members will 
receive a newsletter every 6-7 weeks. 
 
ADRIA newsletters and e-mails would continue to have a member-only focus. 
E-mails would be limited to a max of 2 per month, and paid advertising is envisioned. 
The onBoard e-mails from the BoD would continue as required (4-5 per year) 
 
The new AAMS newsletter would have both a public and practitioner focus, and would 
further designate a page or section to each member association (ie ADRIA and others 
in Alberta).  This ADRIA section would focus on both public and member messages. 
 
 
Dec 2013    ADRIA Newsletter – promote Winter training schedule, provide a look ahead for 2014, 


Staff & BoD profiles, Holiday & year-end messages, etc. 
 
2014 and beyond 
 
Early Jan –       AAMS Newsletter – First edition 
Late Jan –       ADRIA e-mail*  
Late Feb –       ADRIA Newsletter – promote Spring training schedule, promote the AGM, seek Award & 


Recognition nominations, seek designation submissions, and solicit for BoD elections. 
Mid Mar –        ADRIA e-mail* 
 
Early Apr –    AAMS Newsletter  
Late Apr –       ADRIA e-mail*  
Late May –       ADRIA Newsletter – present new BoD/AGM success and Award winners, solicit new 


Instructors & Coaches, promote Summer training schedule 
Mid Jun –        ADRIA e-mail* 
 
Early Jul –       AAMS Newsletter  
Late Jul –        ADRIA e-mail*  
Late Aug –      ADRIA Newsletter – promote Fall training schedule, promote Instructor/Coach training 


event, and seek designation submissions  
Mid Sep –        ADRIA e-mail* 
 
Early Oct –    AAMS Newsletter  
Late Oct –        ADRIA e-mail*  
Late Nov –      ADRIA Newsletter – promote Winter Training schedule 
Mid Dec –        ADRIA e-mail* - Holiday & year-end messages 
 
* as part of a standard routine of ADRIA e-mails designed to keep our membership informed, but using a 
consistent, professional format with a predictable schedule. 
 


BoD approval is requested 


Submissions & suggestions are required now for the Dec 2013 ADRIA newsletter! 
 


 


 


Prepared for the BoD by Paul Conway, Director Member Services, November 2013 








CAL_LAW\ 2000228\1  


ADRIA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 


SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 28, 2013 


CONCORDIA COLLEGE 


 


Attending: Jim Bancroft, Q.C., Deborah Howes, C. Med, Chuck Smith, C. Med, Don 


Goodfellow, Q.C., C. Arb, Wendy Hassen, C. Med, Mike Hokanson, LLB, Dolores Herman, C. 


Med, Stan Galbraith C. Med, Barrie Marshall, Q.C., Paul Conway, Tammy Borowiecki and 


Erika Deines. 


Regrets: Joanne Munro, C. Med 


 


MEETING COMMENCES: 8:40 a.m. 


 


1.0 Welcome and Agenda Review 


The president, Jim Bancroft, introduced the staff members present at the meeting, namely, Paul 


Conway (Member Services Director), Tammy Borowiecki (Professional Development Manager), 


Erika Deines (Executive Director), as well as Rick Moyse of Alberta Culture, the facilitator 


respecting the board's strategic planning session scheduled to follow the Board meeting. 


 


A further agenda item (6.2.1) was added respecting the Executive Director's report in relation to 


two pieces of correspondence received from the Government of Alberta, namely, one from the 


Honourable Manmeet Bhullar, the Minister of Service Alberta, and the other from the 


Honourable Jonathon Denis, Q.C., the Minister of Justice and Solicitor General. 


 


2.0 Minutes of Previous Meetings 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Wendy Hassen, and seconded by Dolores Herman, that the minutes of the 


previous meeting, namely, June 22, 2013, be approved.  Approved unanimously. 


 


3.0 Matters Arising from the Minutes 







 - 2 -  


CAL_LAW\ 2000228\1  


Respecting item 3.1, the board motion to strike a committee to review a by-law amendment to 


permit the ADRIA representative on the ADRIC board to be a board member of ADRIA was 


tabled to be dealt with at the November meeting. 


 


Respecting item 4.1, Erika Deines has recommended, and will proceed with, scheduling of the 


AGM and 2014 Annual Conference for May 23 in Red Deer. 


 


Respecting item 3.2, Erika Deines has taken the necessary steps to implement the new signing 


authority. 


 


Respecting item 5.1, the President and Executive Director have not yet met to discuss the format 


and content of the Executive Director's reports respecting the operational and strategic plans.  


These will be discussed as part of the "Dashboard" discussions during strategic planning. 


 


Respecting item 5.2, the succession planning committee has yet to be struck.  Tabled to 


November meeting. 


 


4.0 Approval of Agenda 


The one item, noted under item 1.0, was added to the agenda. 


 


5.0 Review of Annual Calendar 


It was noted that the September 27/28, 2013, meeting was moved to Edmonton but that the 


locations for all subsequent meetings would remain as currently scheduled. 


 


6.0 Acceptance of Reports 


6.1 Treasurer's Report 


The Treasurer reported that he had been advised by Don Goodfellow, the president of AAMS, 


that ADRIA's schedule of payments had been extended from one year to one and a half years.  


Don Goodfellow reported that he would confirm this by correspondence. 


 


 







 - 3 -  


CAL_LAW\ 2000228\1  


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Barrie Marshall, and seconded by Stan Galbraith, to accept the Treasurers' report.  


Approved unanimously. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Erika Deines to confirm that the directors' and officers' insurance, purchased for $7,000.00 


would extend to cover ADRIA personnel employed as independent contractors. 


 


6.2 Executive Director 


The report of the executive director was deferred to the strategic planning workshop. 


 


6.2.1 Requests from the Government of Alberta 


Erika Deines reported that she had received correspondence from the Honourable Manmeet 


Bhullar and the Honourable Jonathon Denis, Q.C., the Ministers of Service and Justice, 


respectively, respecting the participation by ADRIA in two initiatives.  The first request from the 


Minister of Service Alberta is to assist in phase 2 of a review of the Condominium Property Act 


in relation to dispute resolution issues.  The second request, from the Minister of Justice and 


Solicitor General, is for the participation of ADRIA in a Joint Action Forum on November 20, at 


the Fairmont Hotel MacDonald in Edmonton designed to seek methods of improving access to 


civil and family justice for Albertans. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Erika Deines to seek further information on the nature and scope of the participation of ADRIA 


in these initiatives and to report back to the Board.  Ms. Deines also to make the necessary 


inquiries as to whether participation of Ms. Deines and Stan Galbraith respecting the 


Condominium Property Act initiative would be appropriate. 


 


7.0 Policy Review 


John Souman, the Chair of the Designations Committee, submitted a motion, attached to these 


minutes. 







 - 4 -  


CAL_LAW\ 2000228\1  


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Dolores Herman, and seconded by Stan Galbraith, to accept the recommendations 


of the Designations Committee set out in its proposed motion. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Don Goodfellow, and seconded by Barrie Marshall, that the proposed motion of 


the Designations Committee be tabled to the next meeting and requesting the Designations 


Committee to bring evidence to the Board of the rationale for the motion and the need to 


strengthen requirements for the Q Med. designation.  Approved unanimously. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Chuck Smith to draft a letter setting out a list of questions to be put to the Designations 


Committee and to circulate that letter amongst the Board members. 


 


7.1 Complaints Policy 


Wendy Hassen reported that a draft is being prepared providing a comprehensive policy. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Wendy Hassen will post the draft policy on Sharepoint and it will be discussed at the November 


meeting. 


 


7.2 Relationship with AAMS 


The board discussed the need for a charter or agreement to address the current relationship 


between AAMS and ADRIA.  Don Goodfellow advised that AAMS would consider the drafting 


of an agreement, as opposed to a charter, and that a draft would be provided 


 


8.0 Consent Items 


Erika Deines reported that a project manager had been hired to handle the office opening event. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 







 - 5 -  


CAL_LAW\ 2000228\1  


It is moved by Jim Bancroft, seconded by Wendy Hassen, to adjourn the meeting.  Approved 


unanimously. 


MEETING ADJOURNED:  





